






















ORDINANCE NO. 2020-_________ 

AN ORDINANCE CLOSING THAT CERTAIN MUNICIPAL UTIILITY EASEMENT LOCATED EAST OF 
EAST 6TH STREET AND SOUTH VANN STREET LOCATED IN THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF 
SECTION 18, TOWNSHIP 21 NORTH, RANGE 19 EAST OF THE INDIAN BASE AND MERIDIAN, 
MAYES COUNTY, OKLAHOMA AND WITHIN THE CORPORATE CITY LIMITS OF PRYOR RELATING 
TO THE DEVELOPMENT OF PROPERTY BY RRR PROPERTY MANAGEMENT, LLC AND PROVIDING 
FOR REPEALER AND SEVERABILITY. 
 
WHEREAS, THE MATTER OF THE APPLICATION OF RRR PROPERTY MANAGEMENT, LLC OF AN 
OLD UTILTY EASEMENT WHICH INTERFERS WITH THE DEVELOPMENT OF RRR PROPERTY 
MANAGEMENT PROPERTY LLC CAME BEFORE THE COUNCIL ON FEBRUARY 4TH, 2020, AND 
 
WHEREAS, THE UTILITY EASEMENT IS NOT BEING UTILIZED BY THE CITY, HAS NEVER BEEN 
UTILIZED BY THE CITY AND IS NOT NECESSARY TO THE USES OF THE CITY NOR ANY OF ITS 
FRANCHISE HOLDERS. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR, AND THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PRYOR 
CREEK, MAYES COUNTY, STATE OF OKLAHOMA, AS FOLLOWS: 
SECTION 1. That the municipal utility easement identified herein below should be and is 
hereby closed by the City Council subject to the City’s absolute right to reopen the public 
easement without expense to the municipality as provided by law.  Said closed easement being 
described as follows, to-wit: 

That certain tract or parcel of land situated in the Southeast Quarter (SE/4) of 
Section 18, Township 21 North, Range 19 East of the Indian Base and Meridian in 
Pryor Creek, Mayes County, State of Oklahoma and more particularly described as 
follows, to-wit: 
COMMENCING at the Southwest Corner of said Southeast Quarter, 
THENCE, North 000 00’ 00” East for a distance of 1,799.80 feet and along the West 
line of said Southeast Quarter; 
THENCE, North 900 00’ 00” East for a distance of 650.00 feet to the POINT OF 
BEGINNING; 
THENCE, North 000 00’ 00” East for a distance of 120.00 feet to a point on the 
South line of Blok 6 of the PRYOR HEIGHTS ADDITION; 
THENCE, North 900 00’ 00” East along the South line of Block 6 of the PRYOR 
HEIGHTS ADDITION for a distance of 17.5 feet; 
THENCE, South 000 00’ 00” East for a distance of 170.00 feet; 
THENCE, North 900 00’ 00” West for a distance of 17.50 feet; 



THENCE, North 000 00’ 00” East for a distance of 50.00 feet to the POINT OF 
BEGINNING. 

 
SECTION 2. REPEALER.  

All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed to 
the extent of any such conflict. 

SECTION 3 SEVERABILITY.  
If any section, sub-section, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this Ordinance 
is, for any reason, held invalid or unconstitutional by any Court of competent 
jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct and independent 
provision and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portion of 
this ordinance. 

Passed and Approved by the Council of the City of Pryor Creek, Oklahoma, in regular session 
on this         day of __________________________, 2020 
 
 
       __________________________________ 
ATTEST:      LARRY LEES, MAYOR 
 
____________________________ 
EVA SMITH, CITY CLERK 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY: 
 
____________________________ 
K. ELLIS RITCHIE 
Dated:   _________________, 2020 



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2020-_________ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE 5, CHAPTER 3 BY THE ADDITION OF A NEW SECTION TO BE 

CODIFIED IN TITLE 5, CHAPTER 3, AS SECTION 16 REQUIRING THE SPAY AND NEUTER OF DOGS 

AND CATS; PROVIDING FOR EXCEPTIONS FROM THE REQUIRMENT OF SPAY AND NEUTER OF 

DOGS AND CATS; PROVIDING FOR “INTACT PERMITS”; PROVIDING FOR REVOCATION OR 

NONRENEWAL OF PERMITS; PRESCRIBING OFFENSES AND SETTING FORTH PENALTIES FOR 

VIOLATIONS OF SPAY AND NEUITER REQUIREMENTS RELATED TO DOGS AND CATS; AND 

PROVIDING FOR REPEALER AND SEVERABILITY. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR, AND THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

PRYOR CREEK, MAYES COUNTY, STATE OF OKLAHOMA, TO-WIT: 

SECTION 1. 

Title 5, Chapter 3, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Pryor Creek, Mayes County, State of 

Oklahoma, is hereby amended by the addition of Section 16, said Section to read as follows, 

to-wit:  

 
5-3-16: SPAY AND NEUTER OF DOGS AND CATS: 
 

A. SPAY OR NEUTER REQUIRED: 
1. On or after July 1, 2020, it is unlawful for any person to own, possess, keep or 

harbor within the city any dog or cat over the age of six (6) months that has not 
been spayed or neutered, except as provided in section 5-3-16 (B) 

    
2.  The owner of any dog or cat shall furnish upon request of an animal control officer 

written evidence showing the sterilization status of the animal. A valid rabies 
vaccination certificate listing the subject animal as being spayed or neutered shall 
constitute sufficient proof of sterilization.  

  
3. The failure or refusal of any person to comply with the requirements of this 

section, unless excepted, shall be an offense separate and direct from all other 
offenses prescribed in this chapter and shall not for purposes of enforcement, be 
considered as lesser included to any other offense herein.  

 
B. EXCEPTIONS FROM SPAY OR NEUITER: 

The owner of a dog or cat shall not be required to spay or neuter the animal upon 

demonstrating to the satisfaction of the animal control officer compliance with any of 

the following exceptions:  

 



 

1. The animal is medically unsuited to undergo the sterilization procedure, and a 
veterinarian signs a written statement specifying the medical grounds for the 
exemption.  

2. The animal suffers from a temporary medical condition so that sterilization is 
unsafe or imprudent, and a veterinarian signs a written statement as to the 
prognosis of when sterilization may be performed. The date given on that 
prognosis shall become the expiration date of the temporary medical exemption. 
Upon expiration, sterilization shall be required unless a veterinarian provides 
another temporary medical exemption and prognosis in the same manner.  

 
3. The animal is owned, possessed, kept or harbored within the city for no more 

than sixty (60) days in any consecutive twelve (12) month period.  
  

4. The owner obtains or has made application for an annual intact permit, for any 
reason on deemed valuable to the owner, and is otherwise in compliance with 
the provisions of this chapter. 

  
5. The animal is properly, legally classified as a “Service Animal” under the Federal 

Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA).  The classification of an animal as a “Service 
Animal” under the ADA can be generally stated as being an animal individually 
trained to do work or perform tasks for people with disabilities.  Animals qualifying 
under this exception shall be only those classified as a “Service Animal” under the 
ADA.  

 
C. INTACT PERMIT: 
  

1. It is unlawful for any person who owns, possesses, keeps or harbors within the 
city any un-spayed or non-neutered dog or cat over the age of six (6) months, 
and for which the exceptions enumerated in 5-3-16 (B) do not apply, to fail to 
obtain an intact permit in his or her name. 

 
2. The city clerk or duly authorized agents of the city shall issue intact permits upon 

payment of an initial fee as established by the City Council and set forth in 
“Appendix A” to the Code of Ordinances of the City set by ordinance or resolution 
and approval of an application made for such purpose. The application shall state 
the name, address and telephone number of the owner and the name, breed, 
color, age and sex of the dog or cat for which the intact permit is obtained, and 
such other information as the city clerk may require. Neither the city clerk nor 
any authorized agent shall issue an intact permit until the owner presents a 
certificate showing the dog or cat has a current City of Pryor Registration at the 
time application is made.  

  
3. Upon approval of the application, the city clerk or any authorized agent shall issue 

the intact permit in an appropriate form. An intact permit shall expire one (1) 



 

year from the date of issuance and shall be subject to revocation and nonrenewal 
as provided in 5-3-16 (D). The annual renewal fee shall be that fee as set forth in 
“Appendix A” to the Code of Ordinances of the City set by ordinance or resolution 
after the initial fee has been paid. 

  
4. A current intact permit may be transferred to the new owner of the dog or cat 

for which the permit was issued upon application of the new owner.  
 

5. It is unlawful to use or transfer an intact permit or tag, or attempt to use or 
transfer the same, for or to a dog or cat other than the animal for which the 
permit was issued.  

 
D. REVOCATION OR NONRENEWAL OF INTACT PERMIT: 
  

1. The City of Pryor Creek may revoke the intact permit for a dog or cat when, during 
the current permit year, the owner or keeper of the animal for which the permit 
is issued has failed on two (2) separate occasions to abide by the requirements of 
Section 5-3-6 “Running At Large” as hereinafter provided: 

 
a. The City shall provide written thirty (30) days written notice to the permit 

holder of the City’s determination that the permit shall be revoked effective 
30 days from the date notice is given.  Notice shall be deemed given and 
effective when mailed to the last known address of the permit holder or hand 
delivered to the permit holder. 

 
b. The notice shall specify that the permit holder has the right to appeal the 

decision of the City to revoke the permit and that such an appeal may be 
perfected and prosecuted in the manner provided in Title 1, Chapter 5A for 
“Administrative Appeals” of the Code of Ordinances for the City of Pryor 
Creek.  The notice shall further specify that in the event the permit holder 
does not appeal the decision as provided by Title 1, Chapter 5A for 
“Administrative Appeals” of the Code of Ordinances for the City of Pryor 
Creek, that such permit will be deemed revoked on the date specified in the 
notice. 

 
2. No intact permit shall be issued or renewed to a permit holder of whom a 

previous permit has been revoked. The commencement of revocation 
proceedings shall temporarily stay the issuance or renewal of an intact permit 
pending the outcome of such proceedings.  

 
E. PERMIT RECORDS: 
 

The city clerk shall keep a register of all intact permits issued.  Such records shall include 
the name, address and telephone number of the owner, a description and other 



 

identifying information of the dog or cat so permitted, and the date of issuance of the 
permit and expiration date of same.  
 

F. PENALTY: 
 

Any person who violates the provisions of this section shall, upon conviction thereof, be 
punished as provided in section 1-4-1 of this code. The penalties provided for herein shall 
be in addition to other remedies of the city and aggrieved persons and shall not be 
construed as exclusive 

 
SECTION 2. REPEALER.  

All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed to 
the extent of any such conflict. 
 

SECTION 3 SEVERABILITY.  
If any section, sub-section, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this Ordinance 
is, for any reason, held invalid or unconstitutional by any Court of competent 
jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct and independent 
provision and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portion of 
this ordinance. 
 

Passed and Approved by the Council of the City of Pryor Creek, Oklahoma, in regular session 
on this         day of __________________________, 2020 
 
 
       __________________________________ 
ATTEST:      LARRY LEES, MAYOR 
 
____________________________ 
EVA SMITH, CITY CLERK 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY: 
 
____________________________ 
K. ELLIS RITCHIE 
Dated:   _________________, 2020 
 

https://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?ft=3&find=1-4-1


 

ORDINANCE NO. 2020-_________ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE 5, CHAPTER 3, SECTION 7 PROVIDING FOR FEES CHARGED 

FOR SURRENDED ANIMALS AND IMPOUNDED ANIMALS; CLARIFYING TIME PERIODS OF THE 

CODE PROVISION; RELETTERING PARAGRAPHS; AND PROVIDING FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE  FOR 

SPAYING AND NEUTERING OF REDEEMED ANIMALS TO GOVERNMENT SUBSIDIZED 

HOUSEHOLD; AND PROVIDING FOR REPEALER AND SEVERABILITY. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR, AND THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

PRYOR CREEK, MAYES COUNTY, STATE OF OKLAHOMA, TO-WIT: 

SECTION 1. 

Title 5, Chapter 3, Section 7 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Pryor Creek, Mayes County, 

State of Oklahoma is hereby amended to read as follows, to-wit: (deletions indicted by text 

stricken through, additions indicated by underlined) 

 

5-3-7: IMPOUNDING; SHELTER: 
 
A. Shelter Established; Care Of Animals: A City Animal Control Shelter is hereby established under 

the jurisdiction of the animal control officer or of such other person as may be officially designated. 
The person in charge of the Animal Control Shelter shall provide proper sustenance for all animals 
impounded and shall treat them in a humane manner.  

B. Impounding Animals: 

1. Authority: The animal control officer, or any other City officer or employee, shall catch or take up and 
impound in the City Animal Control Shelter any animal which is at large within the City or in violation 
of this Code. When an animal is so impounded, it shall be humanely kept and treated, and may be 
redeemed and disposed of, as other impounded animals are kept, treated and redeemed or disposed 
of. A description of the animal shall be kept in the Animal Control Office and if the owner is known, the 
City shall attempt to notify the owner of the impoundment orally or in writing. 

2. Presumption Of At Large: In any prosecution charging a violation of any part of this chapter, proof that 
the animal described in the complaint was "at large", as defined herein, and that the defendant named 
in the complaint was the owner of the animal, shall constitute in evidence a prima facie presumption 
that the owner permitted his animal to be at large in violation of this chapter.  

3. Shelter: Any owner which surrenders an animal shall be charged a fee of twenty dollars ($20.00) for 
each animal regardless of whether the owner resides within or without the corporate limits of the city 
of Pryor Creek. If any animal has been impounded due to the incarceration of its owner, the owner 
shall be charged a fee of twenty dollars ($20.00) for each animal so impounded as a condition for its 
return. (See appendix A of this code.) (Ord. 2008-3, 9-16-2008) 

C. Authority Of Officials; Persons: 

1. The animal control officer, a police officer, or such other officer or employee of the city as may be 
authorized: 



 

a. Shall take into custody and impound any animal running at large in violation of any provision of the 
ordinances of the city; and 

b. May enter upon the premises of the owner or other private premises to take such animal into custody. 

2. Any other person may take such animal into custody and present it to the authority in charge of the 
animal control shelter for impounding.  

 
D. Breaking Shelter; Releasing Animals; Interference: No unauthorized person shall: 

1. Break or attempt to break open the animal control shelter, or take or let out any animal therefrom; 

2. Take or attempt to take from any officer or employee of the city any animal taken into custody as 
provided by this chapter; or 

3. In any manner interfere with or hinder an officer or employee in the discharge of his duties relating to 
the taking into custody and impounding of animals as provided in this chapter 

 
E. Fees For Impounding Impounded/Surrendered Animals 

1. The city council, by motion or resolution, shall determine the fees to be charged for impounding 
Impounded animals, surrendered animals and the keeping/boarding of said animals;  Said fees to be 
those as set forth in “Appendix A” of the City Code of Ordinances. In computing the fee, a fraction of 
a day during which an animal has been fed shall be deemed a full day. 

2. Any person redeeming an impounded animal shall pay the required fees to the city and present his 
receipt therefor to the person in charge of the animal control shelter before the latter releases the 
animal.  Any animal impounded may be redeemed within five (5) days or one hundred twenty (120) 
hours from the time of impoundment upon the payment of the applicable impoundment and 
keeping/boarding fee.  Animals redeemed within twenty-four (24) hours of impoundment shall not be 
subject to the keeping/boarding fee. 

3. Any person redeeming a dog or cat not licensed as required by this chapter shall pay the required 
license tax to the city and secure a tag and present the receipt therefor and the tag to the person in 
charge of the animal control shelter before the latter releases the dog or cat. If a dog or cat has been 
licensed but is not wearing the tag, the person in charge of the animal control shelter shall require 
adequate evidence of proper licensing of the dog or cat before releasing it. (See appendix A of this 
code.)  

4.  Five dollars ($5.00) from the fees collected from each impoundment of an animal shall be placed in a 
designated fund set up to provide assistance to animal owners redeeming their animal from 
impoundment where such redeeming owner is a resident of the City and is a member of a low income 
household receiving government low income assistance.  Provided funds are available in the fund 
designated herein, such owner shall be eligible to receive a ten dollar ($10.00) voucher upon 
redemption of the animal to be used to defray the cost of the spaying or neutering of the animal 
required by this section.  Such voucher may, contingent upon availability of funds, be provided by the 
City upon presentation to the City of proof satisfactory to the City to establish qualification for same 
under this paragraph. 



 

 
F. Redemption By Owner/Failure To Timely Redeem: An owner of an impounded animal or his agent 

may redeem the animal, prior to its sale or destruction as provided herein, by paying the required 
fees against the animal and meeting any other requirements which may be prescribed in this 
chapter. However, when in the judgment of the animal control officer, an animal should be 
destroyed for humane reasons, such animal may not be redeemed. Any animal that has not been 
so redeemed within five (5) days/one hundred twenty (120) hours of its impoundment shall be 
deemed a stray which has been abandoned by its owner. As a result, it shall be eligible for 
adoption. If the owner wishes to redeem the animal thereafter, it shall be considered an adoption 
with all applicable fees being due. 

 
G. Sale Or Destruction: 

1. As soon as practicable after any animal has been impounded, the animal control officer or other 
employee or officer impounding the animal, shall post a notice thereof at the police office or animal 
control shelter of the city. The notice shall describe the animal and notify the owner to pay the charges 
thereon and remove the same prior to a designated time. The notice shall also state that unless the 
animal is redeemed the animal will be sold or destroyed as provided in this chapter. The notice shall 
also state that any animal that has not been redeemed within five (5) days/ one hundred twenty (120) 
hours of its impoundment shall be deemed a stray which has been abandoned by its owner. As a 
result, it shall be eligible for adoption or subject to possible destruction. No animal shall be held at the 
shelter for a period in excess of three (3) weeks. 

2. Except as otherwise provided in this chapter, an impounded animal shall be held for one hundred 
twenty (120) hours during which time it may be redeemed pursuant to this chapter. No animal may be 
destroyed or sold until after this period unless same has been deemed vicious or knowingly aggressive 
by the animal control officer, or otherwise severely injured, old or infirm. (Ord. 2008-3, 9-16-2008) 

3. Sales herein provided for shall be for cash or check and shall be conducted by or under the direction 
of the chief of police. In no case shall the price of an animal be less than the fees set out in this chapter 
which have accrued against the animal. If an impounded animal cannot be sold, the animal shall be 
destroyed, in a humane manner, or otherwise disposed of in a legal manner. 

4. The purchaser of an animal at a sale held as provided herein shall acquire absolute title to the animal 
purchased. 

5. The animal control officer shall pay to the city any money received from the sale of impounded animals.  

 
H. Owner May Claim Excess Money: (Rep. by Ord. 2008-3, 9-16-2008) 

 
IH. Spaying Or Neutering: 

1. Required: No dog or cat may be released from the animal control shelter for adoption unless the animal 
has been spayed or neutered, unless the adopting party signs an agreement to have the animal 
spayed or neutered and deposits with the city a deposit ensuring the spaying or neutering of the animal 
in an amount of money as set forth in “Appendix A” determined from time to time by the City Council. 
places a thirty five dollar ($35.00) deposit with the animal control officer to ensure the spaying or 
neutering of the animal. 



 

2. Certificate Of Proof: When an animal is released to an adopting party upon posting of a spay or neuter 
deposit and signing of an agreement to spay or neuter subject to the posting of a thirty five dollar 
($35.00) deposit and signing of an agreement to have the animal spayed or neutered, such person 
the adopting party shall provide a certificate of proof to the city clerk within thirty (30) days of the 
release of such animal to the adopting party, signed by a licensed veterinarian stating that the animal 
has been spayed or neutered with proof of current rabies vaccination and appropriate license. (See 
appendix A of this code.) (Ord. 2008-3, 9-16-2008) 

3. Extension Granted: If the spaying or neutering of the animal within the thirty (30) day period would 
jeopardize the life or health of the animal, the adopting party shall return to the city clerk a certificate 
signed by a licensed veterinarian stating that such spaying or neutering would jeopardize the life or 
health of the animal. In such cases the adopting party shall be granted an additional thirty (30) day 
period in which to have the animal spayed or neutered. Further extensions may be granted upon 
additional veterinary certificates stating their necessity. 

4. Forfeiture Of Funds: If the adopting party does not return the certificate of spaying or neutering within 
the thirty (30) day period or periods of extension, the funds deposited shall be forfeited to the city. 

5. Funds Allocated: Funds forfeited under these provisions shall be placed in a separate account which 
shall be an interest bearing account. The funds of the account shall be allocated to programs which 
directly promote, subsidize or otherwise reduce the cost of spaying or neutering animals held by the 
city. 

6. Refund Upon Furnishing Proof: Upon the return of a certificate signed by a licensed veterinarian stating 
that the animal has been spayed or neutered and furnishing proof that the animal has a current rabies 
vaccination and license, the funds deposited with the city shall be refunded to the adopting party. 
(1988 Code § 4-138) 

 
J.I. Form Of Sterilization Agreement: The sterilization agreement to be used by the city shall be the 

following: 
 
STERILIZATION AGREEMENT 
 
    THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this           day of _________________, 
20______, by and between the City of Pryor Creek, Mayes County, State of Oklahoma 
and                                   (name of adopting party),                             (address and telephone 
number of the adopting party). 
 
    In consideration of the releasing of said animal, and in further consideration of the mutual 
obligations herein, the City of Pryor Creek releases the following animal to the adopting 
party:                                         (describe animal). 
 
    1. The City of Pryor Creek agrees to release the above listed animal into the care of the 
adopting party and refund the adopting party's spaying/neutering deposit; provided, that: 
 
    A. The animal is sterilized by a licensed veterinarian by         day of __________________, 
20____ . 
 
    B. A written statement signed by the veterinarian performing the sterilization, that the animal 
has been sterilized by the stated date, is given to the Clerk of the City of Pryor Creek. 
 



 

    2. The adopting party accepts the above listed animal and agrees: 
 
    A. To have the animal sterilized by a licensed veterinarian by         day of ________________, 
20_____ (30 days from acceptance of the animal). 
 
    B. To provide written evidence to the Clerk of the City of Pryor Creek from the veterinarian 
performing the sterilization that the animal has been sterilized and has a current rabies 
vaccination and license by the listed date. 
 
    This agreement shall be binding upon the assigns, heirs, executors and administrators of the 
respective parties. 
 
    The parties hereto have hereunto set their hands the day and year first above written. 
 
     
    Clerk of the City of Pryor Creek 
 
     
    Adopting Party 
 

SECTION 2. REPEALER.  
All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed to 

the extent of any such conflict. 

SECTION 3 SEVERABILITY.  

If any section, sub-section, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this Ordinance 

is, for any reason, held invalid or unconstitutional by any Court of competent 

jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct and independent 

provision and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portion 

of this ordinance. 

Passed and Approved by the Council of the City of Pryor Creek, Oklahoma, in regular session 
on this         day of __________________________, 2020 
 
 
       __________________________________ 
ATTEST:      LARRY LEES, MAYOR 
 
____________________________ 
EVA SMITH, CITY CLERK 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY: 
 
____________________________ 
K. ELLIS RITCHIE 
Dated:   _________________, 2020 



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2020-_________ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE 5, CHAPTER 3, SECTION 2 BY AMENDMENT OF LANGUAGE 

REGARDING PLACE OF PURCHASE OF TAGS AND THE ADDITION OF A NEW SUB-SECTION “H” 

REGARDING REQUIRMENT FOR STERILIZATION DOCUMENTATION OF DOGS AND CATS AS PART 

OF REGISTRATION PROCESS; AND PROVIDING FOR REPEALER AND SEVERABILITY. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR, AND THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

PRYOR CREEK, MAYES COUNTY, STATE OF OKLAHOMA, TO-WIT: 

SECTION 1. 

Title 5, Chapter 3, Section 2 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Pryor Creek, Mayes County, 

State of Oklahoma, is hereby amended to read as follows, to-wit: (deleted language indicated 

by strike through; amended language to be included indicated by underline) 

 
5-3-2: REGISTRATION; FEE; TAG: 
 
A. Fee Levied; Exception: 

1. A fee in such sum as set by the city council by motion or resolution for every dog and cat more than 
six (6) months of age is hereby levied upon the owner of any such dog or cat kept or harbored within 
the city. 

2. The regulatory fee levied in this section shall not apply to a dog or cat only temporarily brought and 
kept within the city, nor to a dog or cat brought within the city to participate in a show, nor to a seeing 
eye dog when such dog is actually being used by a blind person to aid him in going from place to 
place, nor to dogs or cats being kept in kennels or pet shops for sale. (See appendix A of this code.) 

 
B. Term/Renewal: The owner shall pay the fee levied to the city for every year within thirty (30) days 

after acquiring or bringing the dog or cat into the city. The licenses shall expire on July 1 of each 
year.one (1) year from the purchase date and must be renewed annually.  Proof of a current 
rabies vaccination must be provided with renewal. 

 
C. Rabies Vaccination: The person offering the fee shall present to the city the certificate of a 

veterinarian or other person legally authorized to immunize dogs and cats, showing that the dog 
or cat has been immunized against rabies during the preceding six (6) months prior to issuance 
of the license. 

 
D. Information Required: The owner of the dog or cat shall, at the time of paying the fee, register the 

dog or cat by giving the name and address of the owner, the name, breed, color and sex of the 
dog or cat, and such other reasonable information as the city may request. 

 
E. Receipt, Tag: The city thereupon shall deliver an original receipt to the owner and also an 

appropriate tag to him for the dog or cat. The tag shall constitute a license for the dog or cat.  
Tags may be purchased at City Hall, Pryor Police Department or Rockin G Animal Shelter. 



 

 
F. Tag Affixed To Collar: The owner shall cause the tag received from the city to be affixed to the 

collar of the dog or cat so that the tag can easily be seen by officers of the city. The owner shall 
see that the tag is so worn by the dog or cat at all times. 

 
G. Lost Tag: In case the tag is lost before the end of the year for which it was issued, the owner may 

secure another for the dog or cat by applying to the city treasurer, presenting to him the original 
receipt and paying to him a fee as set by the city council. (See appendix A of this code.) (Ord. 
2010-5, 3-2-2010) 

H. Sterilization: The person applying for registration and offering the fee for registration shall present 
to the city proof of compliance with the sterilization, exemption or intact permit provisions as set 
forth in Section 5-3-16 of the City Code of Ordinances. 

 
 
SECTION 2. REPEALER.  

All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed to 
the extent of any such conflict. 
 

SECTION 3 SEVERABILITY.  
If any section, sub-section, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this Ordinance 
is, for any reason, held invalid or unconstitutional by any Court of competent 
jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct and independent 
provision and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portion of 
this ordinance. 
 

Passed and Approved by the Council of the City of Pryor Creek, Oklahoma, in regular session 
on this         day of __________________________, 2020 
 
 
       __________________________________ 
ATTEST:      LARRY LEES, MAYOR 
 
____________________________ 
EVA SMITH, CITY CLERK 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY: 
 
____________________________ 
K. ELLIS RITCHIE 
Dated:   _________________, 2020 



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2020-_________ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE 5, CHAPTER 3 BY THE ADDITION OF A NEW SECTION TO BE 

CODIFIED IN TITLE 5, CHAPTER 3, AS SECTION 17 PROHIBITING SALE OF ANIMALS IN PUBLIC 

PLACES; AND PROVIDING FOR REPEALER AND SEVERABILITY. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR, AND THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

PRYOR CREEK, MAYES COUNTY, STATE OF OKLAHOMA, TO-WIT: 

SECTION 1. 

Title 5, Chapter 3, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Pryor Creek, Mayes County, State of 

Oklahoma, is hereby amended by the addition of Section 17, said Section to read as follows, 

to-wit:  

5-3-17: PROHIBITION OF SALE OF ANIMALS IN PUBLIC PLACES: 

It shall be unlawful for any person to display, give away, or offer to give away, sell, barter, 
trade, lease or otherwise trade any animal on any public right-of-way, commercial 
parking lot or at any flea market or festival; provided, however, that this section shall not 
apply to any nonprofit organization founded for the purpose of providing humane 
sanctuary or shelter for abandoned unwanted animals. 

SECTION 2. REPEALER.  
All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed to 
the extent of any such conflict. 

SECTION 3 SEVERABILITY.  
If any section, sub-section, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this Ordinance 
is, for any reason, held invalid or unconstitutional by any Court of competent 
jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct and independent 
provision and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portion of 
this ordinance. 

Passed and Approved by the Council of the City of Pryor Creek, Oklahoma, in regular session 
on this         day of __________________________, 2020 
 
 
       __________________________________ 
ATTEST:      LARRY LEES, MAYOR 
 
____________________________ 
EVA SMITH, CITY CLERK 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY: 
 
____________________________ 
K. ELLIS RITCHIE 
Dated:   _________________, 2020 



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2020-_________ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE 5, CHAPTER 3, SECTION 8 PROHIBITING SWINE IN THE CITY 

LIMITS AND PROVIDING FOR SPECIFIC EXCEPTIONS TO THE PROHIBITION; REGULATING THE 

KEEPING OF LIVESTOCK IN THE CITY LIMITS AND PROVIDING SPECIFIC EXCEPTIONS; LIMITING 

THE NUMBER OF DOGS AND CATS KEPT OR MAINTAINED AT PREMISES AND PROVIDING 

SPECIFIC EXCEPTIONS;  AND PROVIDING FOR REPEALER AND SEVERABILITY. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR, AND THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

PRYOR CREEK, MAYES COUNTY, STATE OF OKLAHOMA, TO-WIT: 

SECTION 1. 

Title 5, Chapter 3, Section 8 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Pryor Creek, Mayes County, 

State of Oklahoma, is hereby amended to read as follows, to-wit: (deletions indicated by strike 

through and additions indicated by underline) 

 
5-3-8: SPECIFIC ANIMAL TYPES PROHIBITED; NUMBER OF DOGS AND CATS 
LIMITED: 
 
A. Swine Prohibited: It is unlawful for any person to keep swine in the city limits except temporarily in 

a stockyard awaiting transportation. 

B. Number: It is unlawful for any person to keep or maintain or permit to be kept or maintained any 
cow, horse, donkey, mule, pig, goat, sheep, goose, chicken, duck, turkey, guinea, or more than 
one rabbit upon any property or premises within the corporate limits of the city, except that one 
cow, horse, sheep, goat, donkey or not more than twelve (12) domestic fowl may be kept in any 
pen or enclosure for each multiple of seven thousand (7,000) square feet in area of a pen or 
enclosure which is detached from any dwelling house. Such pen or enclosure where such animal 
or fowl are kept is to be maintained in a sanitary condition and not offensive or dangerous to the 
public health. 

C. LIMITATION ON NUMBER OF DOGS OR CATS: 

It is unlawful for any person or entity to allow more than a total of two (2) dogs and two (2) cats 

to be present outside of the primary dwelling unit at any given time within the city limits. Any 

person or entity maintaining certain dogs or cats at a premises exceeding the limits of this section 

on the date of effectiveness of this ordinance may continue to maintain the same dogs or cats at 

the same premises provided that the person or entity provide proof of the existence of the dogs 

and cats at the premises prior to the effective date of this ordinance by way of rabies certificates 

or other documentary evidence as deemed in the sole discretion of the city to be sufficient.  

Properly licensed pet stores, kennels, boarding facilities and animal shelters located within the 

city shall be exempt from the provisions of this section. 

The city shall not regulate the number or type of animals that are maintained within a primary 

dwelling unit; provided, that all such animals shall have a current rabies vaccination as required 

in this chapter and be maintained in compliance with Title 5 Chapter 3.  Provided further, it is 



 

unlawful to maintain any number of animals within a dwelling unit in such a way that the 

conditions of the dwelling constitute a nuisance or health hazard and threat to the occupants or 

welfare of the animals maintained. 

 
SECTION 2. REPEALER.  

All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed to 
the extent of any such conflict. 
 

SECTION 3 SEVERABILITY.  
If any section, sub-section, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this Ordinance 
is, for any reason, held invalid or unconstitutional by any Court of competent 
jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct and independent 
provision and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portion of 
this ordinance. 
 

Passed and Approved by the Council of the City of Pryor Creek, Oklahoma, in regular session 
on this         day of __________________________, 2020 
 
 
       __________________________________ 
ATTEST:      LARRY LEES, MAYOR 
 
____________________________ 
EVA SMITH, CITY CLERK 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY: 
 
____________________________ 
K. ELLIS RITCHIE 
Dated:   _________________, 2020 



ORDINANCE NO. 2020-_________________ 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING PRYOR CREEK CITY CODE SECTION 4-5-6 REGARDING APPOINTMENT OF 
ENFORCEMENT OFFICIALS, ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICIALS AND HEARING OFFICERS FOR ADMINISTRATIVE 
DECISION-MAKING PURPOSES; AND, THE FIXING OF COMPENSATION FOR SUCH OFFICERS AND 
OFFICIALS; PROVIDING FOR REPEALER AND SEVERABILITY. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA THAT PRYOR 
CREEK CITY CODE SECTION 4-5-6 IS HEREBY AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS (deletions to existing 
ordinance stricken, additions underlined): 
 
SECTION 1: AMENDING ORDINANCE TO READ AS FOLLOWS: 
 
4-5-6: DESIGNATION OF OFFICERS BY THE COUNCIL FOR ENFORCEMENT AND APPEALS AND SETTING 
COMPENSATION FOR SAME:  
The Mayor, with approval of the Council, may appoint enforcement official(s) to serve as administrative 
official(s) for purposes of administrative decisions for purposes of application and enforcement of this 
chapter; and hearing officer(s) for purposes of hearing appeals of decisions of the enforcement official(s). 
No administrative official shall serve as both an enforcement official and a hearing officer. In the absence 
of the appointment of a hearing officer appeals shall be heard by the City Council.  The compensation to 
be paid to any such appointed officer or official for the services to the City provided by such officer or 
official under this paragraph shall be in such amount, if any, and upon such terms as shall be from time to 
time determined and set by the City Council by resolution or ordinance.  In the absence of an ordinance 
or resolution setting forth terms of compensation for any such officer or official appointed it shall be 
deemed that the person so appointed shall serve without compensation until such time as an ordinance 
or resolution establishing terms of compensation, if any, be passed and approved by the City Council. 
SECTION 2. REPEALER. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict here with are hereby repealed 

to the extent of any such conflict. 
SECTION 3 SEVERABILITY. If any section, sub-section, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this 

Ordinance is, for any reason, held invalid or unconstitutional by any Court of competent 
jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct and independent provision 
and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portion of this ordinance. 

 
Passed and Approved by the Council of the City of Pryor Creek, Oklahoma, in regular session on this         day 
of                 _____________________ , 2020   

CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 
 

________________________________ 
Larry Lees, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Eva Smith, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY: 
 
_______________________________ 
Kim Ritchie, City Attorney 
Dated:_____________  



RESOLUTION NO. 2020-     
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 
CONCERNING APPOINTMENT OF COUNCILMAN ZAC DOYLE TO SERVE AS HEARING 
OFFICER OF ADMINISTRATIVE APPEALS CONCERNING PUBLIC NUISANCE 
PROCEEDINGS, HIGH WEED AND TRASH VIOLATIONS, ABANDONED AND 
DILAPIDATED STRUCTURES FOR THE CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA, AND 
PROVIDING FOR COMPENSATION FOR SERVICES. 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to local and state law the City Council may designate a person to serve 
as hearing officer for administrative appeals concerning public nuisances, high weed and 
trash violations, abandoned and dilapidated structures, and fix the amount of compensation 
to be paid such officer, and  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA: That the City of Pryor Creek, Oklahoma acting by and 
through the Mayor and City Council does by these premises appoint Zac Doyle to serve as 
hearing officer for administrative appeals concerning public nuisances, high weed and trash 
violations, abandoned and dilapidated structures within the City; and fix the compensation 
to be paid to said hearing officer in the sum of Fifty Dollars ($50) per hearing docket 
conducted. 
 
 APPROVED, this ____ day of _____________________, 2020 in regular session of the City 
Council for the City of Pryor Creek, Oklahoma. 
 
       _________________________________ 
       Larry Lees, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________ 
Eva Smith, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY: 
 
_________________________________ 
K. Ellis Ritchie, City Attorney 
Dated: _________________________ 



Page 1 of 5 
 
  MINUTES OF CITY COUNCIL MEETING FEBRUARY 4TH, 2020          PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 

 
 

MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

FOLLOWED BY PRYOR PUBLIC WORKS AUTHORITY MEETING 
CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 

TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 4TH, 2020 AT 6:00 P.M. 
 

The City Council of the City of Pryor Creek, Oklahoma met in regular session on the above date and time in 
the Council Chamber upstairs at City Hall, 12 North Rowe Street in Pryor Creek, Oklahoma.  This meeting was 
followed immediately by a meeting of the Pryor Public Works Authority.  Notice of these meetings was posted 
on the East bulletin board located outside to the South of the entrance doors and the City website at 
www.pryorcreek.org.  Notice was also e-mailed to The Paper newspaper and e-mailed to the Council members.   

1. CALL TO ORDER, PRAYER, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE, ROLL CALL. 
 

Mayor Lees called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.  The Prayer and Pledge of Allegiance were led by Briana 
Brakefield.  Roll Call was conducted by City Clerk Eva Smith. Council members present included:  Jon 
Ketcher, Choya Shropshire, Dennis Nance, Steve Smith, Randy Chitwood, Briana Brakefield, Jill Sherman 
and Zac Doyle.  Members absent:  none. 
 

Department Heads and other City Officials present: City Attorney Kim Ritchie, Police Chief Dennis Nichols, 
Assistant Police Chief James Willyard, Fire Chief BK Young, Park Superintendent Frank Powell, Emergency 
Management Director Johnny Janzen, Street Superintendent Buddy Glenn, Golf Superintendent Dennis 
Bowman, Library Director Cari Rerat and Building Inspector Kenneth Young. 
 

Others:  Library Board Chairman Jeanette Anderson, Park Board Chairman Bill Kannegiesser, City Engineer 
Steve Powell, Economic Development Consultant Rickey Hayes, Bill Kolb, Kemmie Shropshire, Adam 
Anderson, Joe Barnts, Victor Casey, Chris Gonthier and Terry Aylward. 
 

2.  DEPARTMENT HEAD REPORTS IF NEEDED: 
a.  Building Inspector 

Young reported that 27 permits were sold in January for a revenue of $2,344.00.  He conducted 63 
inspections.  This number is up 31% over January of 2019. 
 

b.  Emergency Management 
Janzen reported that FEMA is finishing up at the Golf Course.  The Street Department is the next big-ticket 
item for FEMA and there are some things on tonight’s agenda to get that process started.  The Master 
Drainage Plan is another project in the works.  A large issue of concern is drainage under the railroad West of 
Highway 69.  There is a significant amount of water backing up because of the problems in this area.  There is 
also a problem with drainage under Highway 20.   
 

c.  Fire 
Young reported that they responded to 121 emergency calls in January, which is pretty standard.  He also 
reported that they improved their ISO rating from 4 to 3. 
 

d.  Golf 
Bowman reported that everything is still very wet.  They had a good January and are having a good start to 
February.  Revenues are down from last year, and labor is about 18% over where it should be, due to all the 
work that had to be done for the FEMA claim.  He stated that he only has two people working now, which is 
as skeleton-crew as they can have and still function.  They are waiting on cost estimate for bent grass to 
submit to FEMA. 
 

e.  Library 
Rerat reported that they have put together a Complete-Count Committee for the upcoming 2020 Census.  The 
library also received an exhibit on permanent loan from the Tulsa Historical Society regarding the Greenwood 
District and 1921 Tulsa Race Riot. 
 

f.  Parks / Cemetery 
Powell reported that they are still fighting with wet conditions and plan to trim trees when the ground dries 
up.  He stated that he does not have the Cemetery numbers with him, but last year was the lowest it has ever 
been.  They had approximately 75 funerals with a revenue of around $45,000.00. 
 

g.  Police 
Nichols stated that he handed out the statistics to Council earlier.  He thanked the Parks Department for their 
help in boarding and securing some public nuisances. 
 

http://www.pryorcreek.org/


Page 2 of 5 
 
  MINUTES OF CITY COUNCIL MEETING FEBRUARY 4TH, 2020          PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 

 
 

h.  Recreation Center 
No report. 

 
i.  Street 

Glenn reported that they are trimming trees.  They are also working on some drainage issues at NW 5th Street 
and another on the NE side of Rowe Street.  He reported that they spread some brine today in preparation of 
pending bad weather.  The salt and sand trucks and plows are ready to go, if needed. 
 

3.  PETITIONS FROM THE AUDIENCE. 
(LIMITED TO 5 MINUTES.) 

There were no petitions. 
 

4.  MAYOR’S REPORT: 
Mayor moved to Item d. 
 

d.  Update:  Economic Development, Rickey Hayes. 
Rickey Hayes gave an update on different projects being considered.  He also reported on the retailers’ 
conference in Ft. Worth that Mayor Lees attended with him.  He reported that four national retailers have 
taken time to come to Pryor to check out the city – two corporate and two franchisees.  He stated that Mayor 
Lees and he have also been in meetings with several local land owners who are interested in residential 
development.  He was encouraged by the meeting held with local pastors, and the first Economic 
Development Trust Authority meeting. 
 
Mayor moved back to Item a. 

 
a.  Discussion and possible action regarding approval to proceed with the prescribed process as defined 

by the Federal Railroad Administration toward establishing Pryor Creek as a Railroad Quiet Zone. 
(Item tabled at the December 3rd, 2019 meeting and the January 21st, 2020 meeting.) 

Motion was made by Shropshire, second by Brakefield to discuss the prescribed process as defined by the 
Federal Railroad Administration toward establishing Pryor Creek as a Railroad Quiet Zone. (Item tabled at the 
December 3rd, 2019 meeting and the January 21st, 2020 meeting.)  Mayor recommended taking no action at 
this time.  Shropshire and Brakefield amended their motion and second to take no action regarding proceeding 
with the prescribed process as defined by the Federal Railroad Administration toward establishing Pryor 
Creek as a Railroad Quiet Zone. (Item tabled at the December 3rd, 2019 meeting and the January 21st, 2020 
meeting.)  Voting yes:  Ketcher, Shropshire, Nance, Smith, Chitwood, Brakefield, Sherman, Doyle.  Voting 
no:  none. 
 

b.  Update:  Police and Fire Emergency Center project, Jim Graber. 
No action.  Mr. Graber was unable to attend. 
 

c.  Update:  Annexation of “The District.” 
No action.  We are in the 30-day waiting period for the ordinance to go into effect. 
 

5.  CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT: 
a.  Discussion and possible action regarding vacating a utility easement with the following description.  
This easement is currently unoccupied by any city or quasi-public utility and has been replaced with a 

similar utility easement at a very near location.  Municipal Utility Board has been involved with the 
relocation of this utility easement and concurs with the vacation action. The following is a legal 

description of the utility easement to be vacated:   
A tract of land situated in the SE/4 of Section 18, Township 21 North, Range 19 East of the Indian Base 

and Meridian in Pryor Creek, Mayes County, Oklahoma  
and more particularly described as follows to-wit:  

Commencing at the Southwest Corner of said SE/4.  
THENCE North 00 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds East for a distance of 1,799.80 feet and along the 

West Line of said SE/4: 
THENCE North 90 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds East for a distance of 650.00 feet to the Point of 

Beginning; 
THENCE North 00 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds East for a distance of 120.00 feet to a point on the 

South line of Block 6 of the PRYOR HEIGHTS ADDITION; 
THENCE North 90 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds East along the South line of Block 6 of the PRYOR 

HEIGHTS ADDITION for a distance of 17.50 feet; 
THENCE South 00 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds East for a distance of 170.00 feet; 
THENCE North 90 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds West for a distance of 17.50 feet; 



Page 3 of 5 
 
  MINUTES OF CITY COUNCIL MEETING FEBRUARY 4TH, 2020          PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 

 
 

THENCE North 00 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds East for a distance of 50.00 feet to the Point of 
Beginning. 

 

Together with and subject to covenants, easements, and restrictions of record 
said property containing 0.0683 acres more or less. 

Motion was made by Chitwood, second by Ketcher to approve closing a utility easement with the following 
description.  This easement is currently unoccupied by any city or quasi-public utility and has been replaced 
with a similar utility easement at a very near location.  Municipal Utility Board has been involved with the 
relocation of this utility easement and concurs with the closing action. The following is a legal description of 
the utility easement to be closed:   

A tract of land situated in the SE/4 of Section 18, Township 21 North, Range 19 East of the Indian Base 
and Meridian in Pryor Creek, Mayes County, Oklahoma  
and more particularly described as follows to-wit:  
Commencing at the Southwest Corner of said SE/4.  
THENCE North 00 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds East for a distance of 1,799.80 feet and along the 
West Line of said SE/4: 
THENCE North 90 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds East for a distance of 650.00 feet to the Point of 
Beginning; 
THENCE North 00 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds East for a distance of 120.00 feet to a point on the 
South line of Block 6 of the PRYOR HEIGHTS ADDITION; 
THENCE North 90 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds East along the South line of Block 6 of the PRYOR 
HEIGHTS ADDITION for a distance of 17.50 feet; 
THENCE South 00 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds East for a distance of 170.00 feet; 
THENCE North 90 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds West for a distance of 17.50 feet; 
THENCE North 00 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds East for a distance of 50.00 feet to the Point of 
Beginning. 
 

Together with and subject to covenants, easements, and restrictions of record said property containing 
0.0683 acres more or less. 

 

Ritchie made the correction that the motion should read, “closing,” instead of “vacating.”  He stated that the 
City does not vacate, it closes. 
 

Voting yes:  Shropshire, Nance, Smith, Chitwood, Brakefield, Sherman, Doyle, Ketcher.  Voting no:  none. 
 
b.  Discussion and possible action regarding a Memorandum of Understanding between Ragsdale/RRR 

Property Management, LLC and the City of Pryor Creek. 
Motion was made by Chitwood, second by Nance to approve a Memorandum of Understanding between 
Ragsdale/RRR Property Management, LLC and the City of Pryor Creek.  Voting yes:  Nance, Smith, 
Chitwood, Brakefield, Sherman, Doyle, Ketcher, Shropshire.  Voting no:  none.    

 
6.  DISCUSS, POSSIBLY ACT ON CONSENT AGENDA. 

 
a. Approve minutes of the January 21st, 2020 Council meeting. 
b. Approve payroll purchase orders through February 7th, 2020. 
c. Approve claims for purchase orders through February 4th, 2020. 

 
 
 
 
 

d. Acknowledge receipt of deficient purchase orders.  
  There were no deficient purchase orders. 

e. Discussion and possible action regarding disposal of city records as listed on attachment 
according to City of Pryor Creek Retention Policy. 

(Items deemed non-controversial and routine in nature to be approved by one motion without discussion.  Any Council 
member wishing to discuss an item may request it be removed and placed on the regular agenda.) 

FUNDS PURCHASE ORDER NUMBER TOTALS 
GENERAL 1920191587 - 1920191570 $83,384.00 
STREET & DRAINAGE 1920191570 - 1920191522 89,328.94 
GOLF COURSE 1920191536 - 1920191618 9,134.64 
CAPITAL OUTLAY 1920190883 - 1920191546 48,033.60 
REAL PROPERTY ACQUIS. RESERVE 1920191526 - 1920191623 893.00 
POLICE TRAINING FEES 1920191247 1,134.19 
RECREATION CENTER 1920191507 - 1920191507 16,559.58 
PRYOR PUBLIC WORKS AUTHORITY 1920190952 5,000.00 
E-911 1920191524 – 911076B 1,574.68 
   

 TOTAL 255,042.63 
   
 BLANKETS  

911148B H&G PAVING CONTRACTORS 95,983.45 
911149B H&G PAVING CONTRACTORS 670,720.39 

   
 TOTAL 766,703.84 



Page 4 of 5 
 
  MINUTES OF CITY COUNCIL MEETING FEBRUARY 4TH, 2020          PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 

 
 

f. Discussion and possible action regarding an additional expense of $1,672.77 to Collins Electric 
Company of Oklahoma, Inc. for work completed at the Pryor Creek Golf Course which 
exceeded original total quote of $11,272.33 for repair work needed during recent flood. 

g. Discussion and possible action regarding an upfront expenditure in the amount of $7,283.30 to 
Infrastructure Solution Group, LLC for plan review fees for OT Properties, LLC Retail Center 
in the amount of $1,197.60, Holiday RV Park in the amount of $125.00, First Church of God in 
the amount of $5,111.70, PHB Growers in the amount of $764.00 and Bank of Commerce in 
the amount of $85.00 from General Outside Services Account #02-201-5075.  All of these fees 
have been invoiced to each entity for payment. 

h. Discussion and possible action regarding an expenditure in the amount of $14,990.00 for the 
purchase of two new Splash Pad features, the Ombrello Twirl at $5,700.00 and Sea Silhouette 
Seahorse at $7,700.00 plus $1,590.00 shipping from Power Play to be paid from the 
$15,000.00 donation from Cherokee Nation using the Park Donations Account #96-965-5508. 

i. Discussion and possible action regarding purchase of John Deere tractor with front-end loader 
from P&K Equipment at a cost of $29,517.50, with a $2,000.00 trade-in from bids received. 
Offer includes a 6-year power train warranty, as in the best interest of the City from Properties 
Capital Outlay Account #44-445-5419.  Other bids received:  Kubota: MX5200DT at 
$23,017.27, MX5200DT w/Front Loader at $27,611.49, MX5200HST at $24,207.55, 
MX5200HST w/Front Loader at $28,801.77, M6060HD at $27,053.07, M6060HD w/Front 
Loader at $32,724.89 – all prices are before a $4,750.00 trade-in offer; Chupp: Massey 
Ferguson at $26,900.00 before $3,700.00 trade-in offer. 

j. Discussion and possible action regarding an expenditure in the amount of $2,554.07 to Dub 
Ross Co. for the purchase of (4) 18” x 20’, (4) 15” x 20’, and (3) 12” x 20’ drainage pipes and 
bands from Street Misc. Drainage Account #14-145-5423. 

k. Discussion and possible action regarding hiring Infrastructure Solutions Group, LLC to 
complete detailed plans, specifications and contract documents and bidding services for bridge 
replacement and improvements known as Park Branch Bridge on South Dog Pound Road 
approximately 2,950 feet North of the intersection of SW 9th Street and Dog Pound Road and a 
multi-cell box culvert on SW 9th Street approximately 1,000 feet West of the same 
intersection.  The fee for these services is $24,000.00 to be paid from General Outside Services 
Account #02-201-5075. 

l. Discussion and possible action regarding authorizing Infrastructure Solutions Group, LLC to 
solicit on behalf of the City of Pryor Creek contractors qualified to make improvements to Park 
Branch Bridge on Dog Pound Road and the multi-cell box culvert on SW 9th Street in 
accordance with the approved plans and specifications and in accordance with bidding 
documents as supplied by the City of Pryor Creek and Federal Emergency Management 
Authority (FEMA) guidelines. 

m. Discussion and possible action regarding a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between 
Hillcrest Hospital Pryor and the Pryor Creek Police Department. 

n. Acknowledge receipt of excess profit distribution revenues received from the Municipal Utility 
Board per Charter in the amount of $198,886.12 to be placed in the City of Pryor Creek 
General Fund Miscellaneous Account #02-000-4241.   

Motion was made by Smith, second by Chitwood to approve items a – n, less items a and h.  Voting yes:   
Smith, Chitwood, Brakefield, Sherman, Doyle, Ketcher, Shropshire, Nance.  Voting no:  none. 
 

a.  Approve minutes of the January 21st, 2020 Council meeting. 
Motion was made by Smith, second by Brakefield to approve minutes of the January 21st, 2020 Council 
meeting.  Voting yes:  Chitwood, Brakefield, Sherman, Doyle, Ketcher, Shropshire, Smith.  Abstaining, 
counting as a no vote:  Nance.  Voting no:  none. 
 

h.  Discussion and possible action regarding an expenditure in the amount of $14,990.00 for the 
purchase of two new Splash Pad features, the Ombrello Twirl at $5,700.00 and Sea Silhouette Seahorse 

at $7,700.00 plus $1,590.00 shipping from Power Play to be paid from the $15,000.00 donation from 
Cherokee Nation using the Park Donations Account #96-965-5508. 

Motion was made by Chitwood, second by Nance to approve an expenditure in the amount of $14,990.00 for 
the purchase of two new Splash Pad features, the Ombrello Twirl at $5,700.00 and Sea Silhouette Seahorse at 
$7,700.00 plus $1,590.00 shipping from Power Play to be paid from the $15,000.00 donation from Cherokee 
Nation using the Park Donations Account #96-965-5508. 
 

Doyle stated that the Splash Pad is very important for the young people of the City, and the relationship 
between the Cherokee Nation and the City of Pryor Creek is invaluable.  Doyle and Chitwood showed their 
appreciation to the Cherokee Nation for their generosity. 
 

Voting yes:  Brakefield, Sherman, Doyle, Ketcher, Shropshire, Nance, Smith, Chitwood.  Voting no:  none. 



Page 5 of 5 
 
  MINUTES OF CITY COUNCIL MEETING FEBRUARY 4TH, 2020          PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 

 
 

 
7.  COMMITTEE REPORTS: 

a. Budget and Personnel (Doyle) 
Doyle reported that Budget and Personnel Committee will meet on February 11th at 5:30 p.m. 
 

b. Ordinance and Insurance (Sherman) 
Sherman reported that the Ordinance and Insurance Committee will meet on Thursday, February 13th.  

 
c. Street (Smith) 

Smith had nothing to report at this time. 
 

8.  UNFORESEEABLE BUSINESS.  
(ANY MATTER NOT REASONABLY FORESEEN PRIOR TO POSTING OF AGENDA.) 

 

There was no unforeseeable business. 
 

9.  ADJOURN. 
Motion was made by Ketcher, second by Smith to adjourn.  Voting yes:  Sherman, Doyle, Ketcher, 
Shropshire, Nance, Smith, Chitwood, Brakefield.  Voting no:  none. 

 
PRYOR PUBLIC WORKS AUTHORITY 

1.  CALL TO ORDER. 
Meeting was called to order at 6:45 p.m. 
 

2.  APPROVE MINUTES OF JANUARY 21ST, 2020 MEETING. 
Motion was made by Smith, second by Shropshire to approve minutes of January 21st, 2020 meeting.  Voting 
yes:  Doyle, Ketcher, Shropshire, Smith, Chitwood, Brakefield, Sherman. Abstaining, counting as a no vote:  
Nance.  Voting no:  none. 

 
3.  UNFORESEEABLE BUSINESS. 

(ANY MATTER NOT REASONABLY FORESEEN PRIOR TO POSTING OF AGENDA.) 
There was no unforeseeable business. 

 
4.  ADJOURN. 

Motion was made by Ketcher, second by Smith to adjourn.  Voting yes:  Ketcher, Shropshire, Nance, Smith, 
Chitwood, Brakefield, Sherman, Doyle.  Voting no:  none. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
MINUTES APPROVED BY MAYOR / P.P.W.A. CHAIRMAN LARRY LEES 
 
 
__________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
MINUTES WRITTEN BY CITY CLERK / P.P.W.A. SECRETARY EVA SMITH 
 
 
__________________________________________________________________ 


























	01 - rezoning application
	02 - PRY-19-04
	02 - PRY-19-05
	03 - PRY-20-01
	04 - 200210_ORDINANCE_closing_easement_for_ragsdale_development
	05 - 5-3-16 Spay and neuter 200207
	06 - 5-3-7 SURRENDERING IMPOUNDING ANIMALS 200207 (2)
	07 - 5-3-2 Registration requirments 200207
	08 - 5-3-17 Prohibit sale in public places 200207
	09 - 5-3-8_animals_prohibited_and_numbers_200217
	10 - 200213 appointment and pay for hearing officers and officials 4-5-6
	10 - resolution
	11 - CCM20200204
	11 - LIBRARY - OVERDRIVE
	12 - UNITED ENGINES
	13 - fire dept
	14 - Scanned from Pryor Police Department
	15 - Pryor Creek Parks and Recreation Facility Use Agreement 4-2-19

